
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643696 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Mrs Julie Ellams

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mawrth, 11 Medi 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 3 yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr 
Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Llun, 17 Medi 2018 am 10:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 8
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 23/07/2018

4. Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith 9 - 48

5. Gwasanaethau Gwastraff  49 - 68
Gwahoddedigion

Mark Shepherd, Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau;
Cllr Hywel Williams, Dirprwy Arweinydd;
Cllr Richard Young, Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau;
Zak Shell, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth;
Andrew Hobbs, Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwaith Stryd;
Sian Hooper, Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Gwastraff;
Maz Akhtar, Rheolwr Rhanbarthol Kier
Lee Woodall, Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gweithredol
Scott Saunders, Rheolwr Busnes

6. Materion Brys  

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
SE Baldwin
TH Beedle
N Clarke
P Davies
DG Howells
A Hussain

DRW Lewis
JC Radcliffe
RMI Shaw
JC Spanswick
RME Stirman
G Thomas

JH Tildesley MBE
E Venables
MC Voisey
DBF White



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR 
Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 
4WB DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018, AM 09:30

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd JC Spanswick – Cadeirydd 

SE Baldwin TH Beedle N Clarke DG Howells
A Hussain DRW Lewis JC Radcliffe RMI Shaw
RME Stirman G Thomas JH Tildesley MBE E Venables
MC Voisey DBF White

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

P Davies

Swyddogion:

Sarah Daniel Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu
Julie Ellams Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Greg Lane Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Gwahoddedigion:

Zak Shell Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth
Paul Thomas Prif Syrfëwr – Eiddo a cyfleusterau rheolaeth

47. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim

48. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD : Bod cofnodion y Pwyllgor Trosolwg Pwnc 
a Chraffu 3 dyddiedig 19 Ebrill 2018 a 12 Mehefin 2018 yn cael eu 
cymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir.       

49. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y FLAENRAGLEN WAITH

Gwnaeth y Swyddog Craffu gyflwyno'r adborth o gyfarfodydd blaenorol y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg Pwnc a Chraffu 3 a rhestr o'r ymatebion gan gynnwys y rhai hynny a oedd yn 
dal i fod ar y gweill. 

Esboniodd un aelod ei fod wedi cyflwyno cwestiwn i'r Cyngor
ynghylch Gwasanaethau Gwastraff, ond roedd y dyddiad cau wedi mynd rhagddo. 
Gofynnodd pan fydd yr eitem hon yn cael ei hystyried nesaf, a allai'r adroddiad gynnwys 
y contract a pha sancsiynau a oedd ar waith yn sgil diffyg cyflenwi yn y cyfnod cyntaf. 
Roedd am wybod pa gamau a oedd wedi cael eu cymryd yn sgil peidio â chadw at y 
dyddiadau cau, y costau ychwanegol yn ymwneud â phroblemau ar ddechrau'r contract 
a nifer yr atgyfeiriadau gan aelodau. Gwnaeth y Swyddog Craffu atgoffa'r aelodau, fel yr 
esboniwyd yn flaenorol, y gallai’r agweddau ariannol ar y contract gael eu hystyried gan 
y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018

2

Gofynnodd un aelod i'r adroddiad gynnwys diweddariad ar orfodi, a chanlyniad yr 
adolygiad, yn benodol mewn perthynas ag ardal Melin Wyllt. 

Gofynnodd y Swyddog Craffu i'r Pwyllgor a oeddent am gael gwybodaeth bellach 
ynghylch unrhyw eitemau neu a oeddent am flaenoriaethu unrhyw eitemau. 

Cyfeiriodd un aelod at anghenion dysgu ychwanegol a deddfwriaeth aelodau preifat 
ynghylch awtistiaeth a gofynnodd am fwy o fanylion ynghylch yr hyn oedd yn cael ei 
fwydo i’r broses.  

Gofynnodd yr aelodau a ellir blaenoriaethu Parciau a Chaeau, y broses CAT 
ddiwygiedig ac adeiladau gwag.

PENDERFYNWYD:                  Bod yr adroddiad a'r sylwadau a wnaed yn     
                                                  cael eu nodi. 

50. BWRDEISTREF SIROL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR DI-BLASTIG

Gwnaeth Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth gyflwyno adroddiad yn hysbysu'r 
pwyllgor ynghylch llygredd yn sgil gwastraff plastig a'r cais am "Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr di-blastig". 

Gwnaeth un aelod fynegi ei siom am fod yr adroddiad yn cyflwyno safbwynt negyddol 
gan roi rhesymau pam na ellid rhoi camau ar waith yn hytrach na'r hyn y gellir ei wneud. 
Gwnaeth y Cadeirydd gytuno mai'r ymdeimlad cyffredinol a gafwyd gan y pwyllgor oedd 
mai adroddiad arwynebol oedd hwn. Atebodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth 
fod hwn yn bwnc cymhleth ac nad oedd wedi bwriadu bod yn negyddol. Roedd yn 
awyddus i sicrhau y byddai sylw dyledus yn cael ei roi i'r materion a byddai camau 
gweithredu yn cael eu cymryd at y dibenion cywir. Gwnaeth esbonio bod y cynnig, yn 
wreiddiol, wedi cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor ond yna cafodd ei dynnu yn ôl er mwyn iddo 
gael ei ystyried gan Bwyllgor Craffu. Bwriad yr adroddiad oedd ennyn trafodaeth 
ynghylch defnyddio plastig untro yn hytrach na thybio y byddai'r awdurdod yn symud 
ymlaen â’r penderfyniad i roi’r gorau i’w defnyddio. Rhoddodd y Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth esiampl drwy gymharu ysgrifbin untro sy'n cael ei brynu’n 
eang gan yr awdurdod ar hyn o bryd ac ysgrifbin parker sy'n ail-lanwadwy. Roedd un yn 
ddrutach o lawer na'r llall, ond nid oedd angen ei daflu. Tynnodd sylw at yr elfen fach 
hon o wariant cyson, a’r ffaith ei bod yn arwain at achos busnes cymharol gymhleth wrth 
ystyried cost yn erbyn y budd amgylcheddol a byddai angen ystyried hyn yn ofalus er 
mwyn i'r Awdurdod wneud y penderfyniad gorau ynghylch pa un i'w brynu.  Diben yr 
adroddiad oedd tynnu sylw at y cymhlethdodau hyn er mwyn osgoi gwneud 
penderfyniad difeddwl i newid polisi cyn deall y goblygiadau. 

Gwnaeth Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth gyfeirio at 'Blue Planet' sef cyfres 
deledu gan y BBC a oedd yn dangos sut yr oedd plastig yn cael ei ddefnyddio a'i 
waredu’n anghyfrifol, a fyddai’n amlwg yn peri pryder mawr i unrhyw un sy’n gwylio.  
Esboniodd y bu datblygiadau sylweddol yn y dull o waredu plastig ar garreg y drws ac 
wrth gasglu cynhyrchion gwastraff amsugnadwy. Er bod camau gweithredu cadarnhaol 
wedi’u cymryd eisoes, roedd effaith a diffiniad 'Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ddi-blastig' yn 
gymhleth ac nid oedd y buddiannau yn glir. Roedd yn dal i fod lle i wella yn bennaf 
mewn swyddfeydd lle gellir defnyddio rhywbeth yn lle deunyddiau plastig untro. Gallai'r 
newidiadau fod yn eang ac effeithio ar bob rhan o'r Awdurdod gan gynnwys cymorth 
busnes a chaffael. Ychwanegodd, er mwyn gwir ddeall yr effaith lawn byddai angen 
gwneud astudiaeth bellach i weld faint byddai’n ei gostio i roi terfyn ar hyn, yr effaith y 
byddai'n ei chael, a beth fyddai'r arbedion yn yr hirdymor. Byddai'n rhaid i'r awdurdod fod 
yn ymwybodol o'r achos busnes a'r holl faterion ynghlwm ag ef.  Esboniodd y byddai'n 
bosibl newid o fagiau gwastraff bwyd biodiraddiadwy i ddefnyddio bagiau plastig untro a 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018

3

allai gael eu tynnu o'r broses. Mae'n cymryd gormod o amser i'r bagiau biodiraddiadwy 
bydru yn y broses sydd ohoni ar hyn o bryd. Ychwanegodd fod hwn yn bwnc cymhleth 
ac y dylid annog ailddefnyddio ble bynnag y bo'n bosibl. 

Trafododd aelodau yr angen am farchnad ar gyfer plastig, er mwyn creu galw iddo gael 
ei ailgylchu, yr angen i fagiau gael eu gwneud o blastig sydd wedi'i ailgylchu, casglu 
plastig caled ar safleoedd a chyflwyno casgliad polystyren. Trafododd yr aelodau 
ddarpariaeth ffynhonnau dŵr yn adeiladau'r Cyngor.  

Cyfeiriodd un aelod at ymgyrch Green Peace "9 ffordd i leihau eich defnydd o blastig" ac 
awgrymodd fod y Cyngor yn mabwysiadu'r rhain. Gwnaeth hefyd awgrymu bod y Cyngor 
yn ymgysylltu â "Surfers against Sewage" ac yn hyrwyddo'r cynllun drwy Hyrwyddwr 
Amgylcheddol yn y Cyngor. 

Gwnaeth yr Aelod Cabinet ar gyfer Cymunedau esbonio y byddai'r cynnig gwreiddiol i'r 
Cyngor wedi gorfodi'r awdurdod i weithredu mewn modd penodol er nad oedd y cynigion 
wedi'u hariannu na'u trafod.  Drwy weithio gyda’r Pwyllgor Craffu gallent edrych ar yr hyn 
sydd ar gael eisoes, yr hyn y gellid ei wneud a dod o hyd i ffordd strategol ymlaen. 
Roedd yn siomedig ynghylch y sylwadau negyddol am yr adroddiad a phwysleisiodd ei 
bod yn bwysig deall yr hyn oedd yn cael ei wneud, yr hyn y gellid ei wneud a chynllunio 
ffordd strategol ymlaen. Ar hyn o bryd, nid oedd unrhyw gyllideb ar gyfer y gwaith hwn 
ac nid oedd yn flaenoriaeth tan nawr. 

Trafododd yr aelodau y broses o ailgylchu plastig du mewn canolfannau ailgylchu 
cymunedol ac fe'u hysbyswyd er nad oedd hyn yn cael ei gynnig ar garreg y drws, ei bod 
yn bosibl i breswylwyr ailgylchu eu plastig yn y canolfannau ailgylchu cymunedol. 

Gwnaeth yr aelodau hefyd gwestiynu a oedd y sachau glas a ddefnyddir ar garreg y 
drws i breswylwyr waredu eu gwastraff cyffredinol wedi'u gwneud o blastig sydd wedi'i 
ailgylchu ac os felly, dylid ei nodi ar y bagiau.   Gwnaeth Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Stryd gadarnhau y byddai'n ymchwilio i’r mater ac yn adrodd yn ôl i'r aelodau. 

Gofynnodd un aelod a fyddai eitemau glanweithiol yn gallu cael eu casglu yn hytrach 
na'u hanfon at safleoedd tirlenwi neu eu llosgi. Dywedwyd wrtho y gallai hyn gael 
goblygiadau sylweddol ar yr holl gasgliadau ac y gallai fod cost sylweddol ynghlwm wrth 
hyn na allai gael ei chyfiawnhau gan y lleihad mewn tunelli.  Ychwanegodd fod angen 
cadw llygad ar y gyllideb hefyd, yn ogystal ag edrych ar yr effaith amgylcheddol o 
ddarparu dulliau ailgylchu amgen. Awgrymodd, pe bai aelodau yn dymuno i'r opsiwn 
hwn dderbyn sylw, y bydd angen cynnal ymarfer costio. 

Gofynnodd aelodau pam y bu oedi ynghylch caffael cwmni allanol i ymgymryd â gwaith 
gorfodi yn erbyn gollwng sbwriel ym  Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Esboniodd y 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth mai'r bwriad oedd ei weithredu’n gynharach ond 
ei bod wedi cymryd cryn dipyn o amser i drefnu a diweddaru dogfennau am fod 
cyfyngiadau ar amser swyddogion.  Ychwanegodd y bydd hyn yn cael ei roi ar waith yn 
fuan.

Trafododd aelodau fagiau am oes, eco arwyr ar gyfer ysgolion, y defnydd o gyfryngau 
cymdeithasol i hyrwyddo dulliau gwastraff ac ailgylchu Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr a’r hyn y gellir ei ailgylchu ar garreg y drws ac mewn canolfannau ailgylchu 
cymunedol.  

Gwnaeth yr aelodau hefyd awgrymu bod yr Awdurdod yn archwilio opsiwn peiriannau 
gwerthu o chwith, lle rydych yn rhoi eitem blastig i mewn a bod system wobrwyo ar sail 
pwyntiau ar waith.  

Page 5



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018

4

Esboniodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth mai un o'r problemau gyda biniau 
ailgylchu canol y dref oedd lefel yr halogi. Ychwanegodd y byddai'n hoffi gweld treialon 
yn cael eu cynnal mewn ardaloedd a fyddai'n cael eu dewis yn bwrpasol. Roedd yr 
aelodau yn cytuno â hyn. 

Nododd un aelod y mater ynghylch offer untro ac arlwyo. Roedd yn credu y dylai 
safleoedd bwyd gael eu hannog i helpu i leihau'r gwastraff sy'n cael ei adael mewn 
meysydd parcio ac ati. Dywedodd hefyd y dylai archfarchnadoedd gael eu hannog i 
leihau swmp y pecynnau sydd ar nwyddau.                  

Trafododd yr aelodau'r trefniadau ynghylch ailgylchu yn adeiladau'r cyngor a'r Cynulliad 
Cenedlaethol lle mae biniau ailgylchu ym mhob ystafell. Gwnaethant gytuno yn ogystal 
ag annog preswylwyr i ailgylchu, y dylai swyddogion arwain drwy esiampl ac ailgylchu 
gymaint â phosibl. 

Argymhellion
 Argymhellodd yr aelodau y dylai'r awdurdod arwain y ffordd ynghylch lleihau 

eitemau plastig untro ac annog busnesau lleol a'r gymuned i ddilyn yr un drefn.  
Argymhellodd yr aelodau y dylai’r Awdurdod ddechrau gyda chamau a awgrymir 
gan Gyfeillion y Ddaear, megis annog defnyddio poteli dŵr sy'n gallu cael eu 
hailddefnyddio, gwellt papur a phrynu ffrwythau a llysiau nad ydynt mewn pecyn. 

 Roedd yr aelodau yn argymell bod Swyddogion yn archwilio'r opsiwn o osod 
ffynhonnau dŵr mewn lleoliadau allweddol drwy gydol y fwrdeistref er mwyn 
annog ailddefnyddio poteli dŵr yn hytrach na phrynu dŵr mewn poteli plastig.  
Gwnaeth yr aelodau annog swyddogion i archwilio hyn fel rhan o ddatblygiadau 
Marchnad Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

 Gwnaeth yr aelodau argymell bod swyddogion yn archwilio'r opsiwn o dreialu 
biniau ailgylchu yn y fwrdeistref ac os byddai'n llwyddiannus, dylid eu gosod ym 
mhob tref o fewn y fwrdeistref er mwyn annog aelodau'r cyhoedd i ailgylchu pan 
fyddant allan yn ogystal ag yn y cartref.   

 Gwnaeth aelodau argymell bod y Cyngor yn mabwysiadu Hyrwyddwr 
Amgylcheddol er mwyn annog aelodau a'r gymuned ynghylch materion sy'n 
ymwneud â gwastraff ac ailgylchu yn y fwrdeistref

 Gwnaeth yr aelodau argymell bod yr Awdurdod yn defnyddio eu tudalennau 
Facebook a Twitter yn well er mwyn cyfathrebu'n rheolaidd â phreswylwyr 
ynghylch yr hyn y gellir ei ailgylchu ar garreg y drws a hefyd mewn canolfannau 
ailgylchu cymunedol.  Nododd aelodau nad oeddent yn ymwybodol y gellid mynd 
â gwastraff plastig du i ganolfannau ailgylchu cymunedol i'w hailgylchu fel y 
nododd y swyddogion yn ystod y cyfarfod.  Gofynnodd aelodau fel rhan o'r 
broses gyfathrebu, a allai swyddogion annog preswylwyr i waredu  eitemau untro 
megis clytiau gwlyb a ffyn cotwm, a'u gwaredu yn briodol. 

 Gwnaeth yr aelodau argymell bod swyddogion yn cysylltu â Chymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i ganfod pa ddulliau y mae awdurdodau lleol eraill yn eu 
mabwysiadu er mwyn lleihau eu gwastraff plastig. 

 Gwnaeth yr aelodau argymell bod yr opsiynau ar gyfer cynllun blaendal ar gyfer 
dychwelyd poteli plastig yn cael ei archwilio yn y fwrdeistref ac argymhellwyd bod 
yr Aelod o'r Cabinet perthnasol yn ysgrifennu at Lywodraeth Cymru i'w hysbysu 
bod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn cefnogi'r cynllun hwn.

Gwybodaeth bellach
 Gofynnodd yr aelodau am eglurhad ynghylch y bagiau untro sy'n cael eu 

defnyddio gan yr Awdurdod i gasglu gwastraff dros ben gan breswylwyr, ac a 
oeddent wedi'u gwneud o ddeunydd ailgylchu ac os felly dylai hyn gael ei nodi ar 
y bagiau er mwyn eu hyrwyddo yn y gymuned. 

 Gofynnodd yr aelodau a oedd yn ofynnol i fanwerthwyr roi cyfraniad elusennol 
tuag at yr hyn a godir am fagiau amldro.

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 23 GORFFENNAF 2018

5

 Roedd angen i'r aelodau gael gwell dealltwriaeth ynghylch effeithiau 
amgylcheddol a chyllidebol defnyddio bagiau plastig untro yn hytrach na bagiau 
biodiraddiadwy ar gyfer gwaredu gwastraff bwyd. 

 Gofynnodd yr aelodau a ellir archwilio dull o ailgylchu nwyddau glanweithiol a 
hynny drwy ystyried effeithiau amgylcheddol a chyllidebol

 Hoffai aelodau dderbyn amserlen benodedig ar gyfer y broses o gaffael 
contractwr allanol i ymgymryd â chamau gorfodi ynghylch gollwng sbwriel yn y 
fwrdeistref. Roedd aelodau wedi clywed y byddai hyn yn destun proses dendro 
yn fuan, ond roeddent am gael sicrwydd ynghylch pryd fyddai hyn yn digwydd a 
phryd y byddai contractwr yn cael ei benodi. 

 Gofynnodd yr aelodau am eglurhad ynghylch y math o gerbydau a oedd â hawl i 
fynd i ganolfannau ailgylchu cymunedol a beth oedd yn cael ei ystyried fel cerbyd  
masnachol ac felly nad oedd â hawl i fynd i'r canolfannau.

Gwybodaeth bellach ar gyfer yr adroddiad gwastraff
 Diweddariad ynghylch y peiriant byrnu polystyren a oedd ar fin cael ei osod 

mewn canolfannau ailgylchu cymunedol.   A fydd hyn yn cael ei osod? Pryd?

51. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11:50

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO THE SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3

17 SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE

1. Purpose of the Report

a) To present the items prioritised by the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee including the next item delegated to this Subject Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee;

b) To present the Committee with a list of further potential items for comment and 
prioritisation;

c) To ask the Committee to identify any further items for consideration using the pre-
determined criteria form;

d) To consider and approve any feedback received from the previous meetings of 
the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 and note the list of responses 
including any still outstanding at Appendix A.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The key improvement objectives identified in the Corporate Plan 2018–2022 have 
been embodied in the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes. The 
Corporate Improvement Objectives were adopted by Council on 22 February 2018 
and formally set out the improvement objectives that the Council will seek to 
implement between 2018 and 2022. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees engage 
in review and development of plans, policy or strategies that support the Corporate 
Themes.

3. Background

3.1 Under the terms of Bridgend County Borough Council’s Constitution, each Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee must publish a Forward Work Programme (FWP) as far as it 
is known.  

3.2 An effective FWP will identify the issues that the Committee wishes to focus on 
during the year and provide a clear rationale as to why particular issues have been 
selected, as well as the approach that will be adopted; i.e. will the Committee be 
undertaking a policy review/ development role (“Overview”) or performance 
management approach (“Scrutiny”).

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Feedback

3.3 All conclusions made at Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee (SOSC) 
meetings, as well as recommendations and requests for information should be 
responded to by Officers, to ensure that there are clear outcomes from each topic 
investigated.

3.4 These will then be presented to the relevant Scrutiny Committee at their next 
meeting to ensure that they have had a response.

3.5 When each topic has been considered and the Committee is satisfied with the 
outcome, the SOSC will then present their findings to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (COSC) who will determine whether to remove the item from the 
FWP or to re-add for further prioritisation at a future date.

3.6 The FWPs will remain flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input 
from each SOSC and any information gathered from FWP meetings with Corporate 
Directors and Cabinet.

4. Current Situation / Proposal

4.1 Attached at Appendix B is the overall FWP for the SOSCs which includes the topics 
prioritised by the COSC for the next set of SOSCs in Table A, as well as topics that 
were deemed important for future prioritisation at Table B.  This has been compiled 
from suggested items from each of the SOSCs at previous meetings as well as the 
COSC. It also includes information proposed from Corporate Directors, detail from 
research undertaken by Scrutiny Officers and information from FWP Development 
meetings between the Scrutiny Chairs and Cabinet. 

4.2 The Committee is asked to first consider the next topic they have been allocated by 
the COSC in Table A and determine what further detail they would like the report to 
contain, what questions they wish Officers to address and if there are any further 
invitees they wish to attend for this meeting to assist Members in their investigation.

4.3 The Committee is also asked to then prioritise up to six items from the list in Table B 
to present to the COSC for formal prioritisation and designation to each SOSC for 
the next set of meetings.  

Corporate Parenting

4.4 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards looked after children and young people.  This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children Act 
2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘corporate parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for the children and young people looked after by Bridgend. 

Page 10



4.5 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 
affects children in care and care leavers, and in what way can the Committee assist 
in these areas.  

4.6 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet-Committee and particularly any decisions or 
changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents.

Identification of Further Items

4.7 The Committee are reminded of the Criteria form which Members can use to propose 
further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for prioritisation at 
a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to consider issues such 
as impact, risk, performance, budget and community perception when identifying 
topics for investigation and to ensure a strategic responsibility for Scrutiny and that 
its work benefits the organisation.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to the review and 
development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the power to 
promote or improve economic, social or environmental wellbeing in the County 
Borough of Bridgend.  Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny Committees and 
the procedures relating to them would require the Bridgend County Borough Council 
constitution to be updated.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality implications attached to this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with 
5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for people. 
The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve the well-
being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this report:

 Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the Planning of Scrutiny
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its 
policies, budget and service delivery

 Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows 
for the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members 
are provided an opportunity to influence and improve decisions 
before they are made by Cabinet

 Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives

Page 11



 Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programe has 
taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of 
Service, Elected Members and members of the public

 Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that the public and stakeholders can view topics that will be 
discussed in Committee meetings and are provided with the 
opportunity to engage.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 There are no financial implications attached to this report. 

9.     Recommendations  

9.1 The Committee is recommended to:

(i) Approve the feedback from the previous meetings of the Subject Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 3 and note the list of responses including any still 
outstanding at Appendix A;

(ii) Identify any additional information the Committee wish to receive on their next 
scheduled item as well as further invitees;

(iii) Identify any further detail they require for any other items in the overall FWP 
shown in table B of Appendix B;

(iv) Prioritise items from the FWP to present to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for formal prioritisation and designation back to the 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees;

(v) Agree to use the criteria form for any additional items for future considerations 
on the Scrutiny Forward Work Programme.

Kelly Watson 
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Contact Officer: Sarah Daniel

Telephone: (01656) 643387

E-mail: Scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk 

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

Page 12

mailto:gary.jones@bridgend.gov.uk


Date of 

Meeting

Item Members wished to make the following recommendations Response/Comments

Members recommended that Officers explore how they can better convey the way in 

which information such as work schedules for highway repairs, grass cutting, road 

resurfacing and other areas under the Highways remit is shared as the lack of 

information often leads to frustration from residents and duplicate referrals being 

received.  Members believe if the information is readily available to residents and 

Councillors there would be less unnecessary and duplicate referrals received.  

Scheduled highways resurfacing planned 

for the year previously provided, Grass 

cutting schedule attached at Appendix 

A1.

 Members recommended that officers in Communities Directorate work with the Digital 

Transformation team to improve the use of information sharing through the use of ICT 

and explore the options of the development of an App for residents and Councillors to 

use to enable them to report issues in their areas such as potholes and defective street 

lights.  Members stated this would lead to less repetitive referrals coming through as 

residents could track if an issue had already been reported and how it has been 

prioritised. 

A number of initial meetings between 

officers of the Communities  directorate 

and the Digital Transformation team 

have been held to this end. 

 In relation to the above recommendations Members have requested a definitive 

timeline and action plan on how this will be progressed 

The project has not progress to this 

stage yet and budgets will have to be 

confirmed. As soon as a timeline is 

available it will be shared.

 Members recommended a member development session be arranged on BridgeMAPS This has been added to the Member 

Development Forward Work Programme 

for October 2018

Members requested to receive the following further information

A schedule of Grass Cutting in the Borough Attached at Appendix A1

A schedule of resurfacing highways in the Borough Previously provided

What criteria is used to determine the frequency in which certain highways are 

inspected See attached Word Document 

 Copy of the report that went to the Audit Committee on Highways
This was a Powerpoint presentation not 

a report, attached at Appendix A3

 Terms of Reference for the vehicle enforcement camera that patrols the schools 
See attached Word Document 

Criteria for sites to be considered essential for the need of a school crossing patrol 
See attached Word Document 

Show the Highways budget savings as a % of that of the whole Directorate
Attached at Appendix A4

 Provide APSE data from the report electronically if possible Attached at Appendix A5

Highways12-Jun-2018

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Green Spaces and Bereavement Services 

 

Grass Cutting Schedules 2018 

 

Activity Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct 

Urban 
Grass 

                                

Rural 
Grass 

                                

Natural
ised 
Areas 

                                

Single 
Swathe 
Cutting 

                                

Hedge 
Cutting 

                                

 

Urban Grass Routes 

Gang 1 - Starts in Nantymoel, working their way down the valley towards Blackmill, then goes across 

to Bettws and works up the valley towards Blaengarw. 

Gang 2 - Starts in Laleston, goes into Broadlands, across Cefn Glas, into Brackla and then on to 

Pencoed. 

Gang 3 - Starts in Pyle/N & S Cornelly, goes over Cefn Cribwr and down to Pen y Fai, then towards 

Litchard/top end of Cefn Glas and back up towards Sarn/Brynmenyn area. 

Gang 4 - (when not on Rural Grass) Starts in Porthcawl, then goes to Sarn/Brynmenyn, Tondu and 

towards Maesteg. 

When gang 4 is on the rural grass, gang 3 would normally pick up Porthcawl. 

All gangs normally end up meeting around Tondu/Maesteg areas where they then all work together 

to finish the round off. 

Rural Grass 
 
1 First cut - start date 16/04/2018/completed 
2 Second cut  - start date 29/05/2018 
3 Third cut - start date 09/07/2018 
4 Fourth cut - start date 03/09/2018 

 

NB. All grass cutting operations are subject to change due to weather and 

ground conditions. 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A2

Schemes 2018/19
Resurfacing programme – Capital Funding (£250K + £1,250k Welsh Government funding) 

Location Description Identification
1.

A473 OCLP club Bryntirion
Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections

2.
a48 Stormy lane junction

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

3.
B4181 Coychurch Road

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, Complaints (Public & Members)

4.
Brocastle avenue, waterton ind est

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

CVI Visual Inspections, Highway Inspections, 
Complaints (Public & Members)

5. 
B4281 Cefn road

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections

6.
a4061 Dual from hyg r/a to penycae r/a

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

7.
A48 Ewenny R/A

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Highway Inspections, Complaints (Public & 
Members)

8.
a4061 Bwlch Cattle grid up

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

9.
A4061 Aber road/ogwy street, Nantymoel

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

10.
station street, garth

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

11.
A4093 Blackmill lights to parachute factory

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Scrim/Scanner, CVI Visual Inspections, Highway 
Inspections, 

12.
Abercerdin Road,Evanstown

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Highway Inspections, Complaints (Public & 
Members)

13.
A473 Waterton r/a

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Highway Inspections, Complaints (Public & 
Members)

14.
fforrd yr eglyws, North Cornelly

Plane out and inlay Base 
Course and Surface Course

Highway Inspections, Complaints (Public & 
Members)

P
age 17



Appendix A2

Micro Asphalt Resurfacing – Revenue Funding (£45K)
Location Description Identification

1 Woodside, Litchard 6mm Thin surfacing Highway Inspections
2 Glen View, Litchard 6mm Thin surfacing Highway Inspections
3 Dan y Coed, Blackmill 6mm Thin surfacing Highway Inspections
4 Ty Merchant, Pencoed 6mm Thin surfacing Highway Inspections

Surface Dressing Programme – Revenue Funding (£162K)

Location Description Identification
1 Careg llwyd, Broadlands 14mm Surface Dressing Highway Inspections
2 Ffordd tirion,broadlands 10mm Surface Dressing Highway Inspections
3 Cefn carfan, bryncethin 14mm Surface Dressing Scrim, Highway Inspections
4 Main road broadlands 14mm Surface Dressing Scrim, Highway Inspections

Footway Programme (Capital funding £400k)

Location Description Identification
1 PRINCESS STREET, MAESTEG Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections,
2 BLOSSE STREET, NANTYFFYLLON Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
3 EAST AVENUE, CEFN CRIBWR Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
4 WEST AVENUE, CEFN CRIBWR Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
5 HEOL ONNEN, NORTH CORNELLY Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 

P
age 18



Appendix A2

6 WEST DRIVE, PORTHCAWL Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 
Surveys, 

7 BURNS CRESCENT, BRYNTIRION Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, 
8 FAIRFIELD, NORTH CORNELLY Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
9 DOL AFON, PENCOED Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
10 BRYNFFRWYD CLOSE, COYCHURCH Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Complaints
11 MAES Y WERN, PENCOED Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, , Complaints
12 CHANNEL VIEW, BRACKLA Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, 
13 HEOL DEWI SANT, BETTWS Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, Condition 

Surveys, Complaints
14 HILL VIEW, PONTYCYMER Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, 
15 MOIRA TERRACE, OGMORE VALE Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, 
16 KENRY STREET, EVANSTOWN Footway renewal (PART) Highway Inspections, 

Structural programme – Capital Funding (£375K) 

Location Description Identification
1. Wildmill, Bridgend (phase 2) Parapet replacement Structural Database, 

(This is the second phase of the parapet replacements 
and the service diversions need to be undertaken to 
allow the replacement)

2 Heol Richard Price, Bettws Retaining wall replacement Structural Database -- Failure

P
age 19



Appendix A2

Scour Works (Revenue Budget £150K)

Location Description Identification
1. Commercial Street, Maesteg Repairs to scour at retaining wall Structural inspection
2. Charles Row, Maesteg Repairs to scour at retaining wall Structural inspection
3. Llangeinor Square Culvert Repairs and replacement of 

section of culvert
Structural Inspection

A4061 Frithwaun/Frithwin Bridges (Capital Scheme £2.5M over 5 years – currently YR 3)

Location Description Identification
1. A4061 Frithwaun/Frithwin 

Bridges
Contract documents to tender, 
Tender process, contract to be 
awarded and start on site YR 4 
(2019-20)

Structural Inspection

P
age 20



Maintenance of the Highway 
Network 

Long term and short term 
expectations  

P
age 21



The size of the Challenge 

• Total Carriageway Asset length 780km 

• Total Carriageway Asset Value £888million 

• Total spend per annum on Carriageway 
resurfacing only £500k which equates to less 
than 0.1% of value 

• Comparison to other authorities NPTBC 
£886K, VOG £800K, RCT £2.5M 

P
age 22



Legislation 

• Highways Act 1980 – Section 41 states the 
highway authority are under a duty to 
maintain a highway that is maintainable at 
public expense 

• An action (most typically claims) can arise out 
of an authorities failure to maintain 

• Highways Act 1980 – section 130 states it is 
the duty of the highway authority to protect 
the rights of the public to use the highway.  

P
age 23



Legislation (contd.) 
Recent court of appeal decisions 

• Wilkinson V City of York Council (2011) -- a 
lack of resources cannot be taken into 
consideration in defending claims under 
section 41 

• Crawley v. Barnsley MBC (2016) --- Defects 
once reported must be assessed within 
24hours 

 

P
age 24



Intervention Criteria 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Rating System of Defects 
 

CATEGORISATION/DEFINITION OF HIGHWAY “SAFETY” DEFECTS. 

 

CARRIAGEWAY 

CATEGORY 

INSPECTION 

FREQUENCY 

EMERGENCY SAFETY INTERVENTION LEVELS 

       (24HR REPAIR) ---- PRIORITY 1 

  NON-EMEGENCY SAFETY INTERVENTION LEVELS  

(28 DAY REPAIR)    ----PRIORITY 2 

  

 Frequency in 

brackets is Code 

of Practise 

recommendation 

POTHOLES SUBSIDENCE OR 

RAISED AREAS 

(With a minimum 

actionable value of 

75mm) 

PROTRUDING 

IRON WORK 

 

POTHOLES SUBSIDENCE OR 

RAISED AREAS 

(With a minimum 

actionable value of 

50mm) 

PROTRUDING 

IRON WORK 

 

2 STRATEGIC 

ROUTE 

3 MONTHS 
(1 MONTH) 

40mm 10% 25mm 

- 

**See note 1** 10% **See note 1** 

 

3a MAIN 

DISTRIBUTER 

3 MONTHS 
(1 MONTH) 

50mm 10% 25mm 

- 

40mm 10% **See note 1** 

 

3b SECONDARY 

DISTRIBUTOR 

3 MONTHS 
(1 MONTH) 

50mm 10% 25mm 

- 

40mm 10% **See note 1** 

 

4a LINK ROAD 6 MONTHS 
(3 MONTHS) 

75mm 

 

20% 50mm 

- 

40mm 10% 35mm 

 

4b LOCAL 

ACCESS 

12 MONTHS 
(12 MONTHS) 

100mm 

 

20% 75mm 

- 

40mm 10% 35mm 

 

FOOTWAY 

CATEGORY 

 TRIPS 

(VERTICAL 

DIFFERENCES IN 

LEVEL) 

  TRIPS 

(VERTICAL 

DIFFERENCES IN 

LEVEL) 

  

1a PRESTIGE 

AREA 

1 MONTH 
(1 MONTH) 

20mm 15% 20mm **See note 1** 15% **See note 1** 

1 PRIMARY 

WALKING 

ROUTE 

1 MONTH 
(1 MONTH) 

20mm 15% 20mm **See note 1** 15% **See note 1** 

2 SECONDARY 

WALKING 

ROUTE 

3 MONTHS 
(3 MONTHS) 

40mm 15% 40mm 20mm 15% 20mm 

3 LINK 

FOOTWAY 

6 MONTHS 
(6 MONTHS) 

50mm 30% 50mm 20mm 15% 20mm 

4 LOCAL ACCESS 

FOOTWAY 

12 MONTHS 
(12 MONTHS) 

50mm 30% 50mm 20mm 15% 20mm 

 

P
age 25



Intervention Criteria 

• SCRIM (Skidding resistance) investigatory criteria are 
based on the DMRB National Document which 
provides intervention levels based on road layouts. 

• For example, Speed Limits, No. of junctions, Road 
geometry (gradient and bend radii), presence of 
Schools, Traffic lights, Approaches to Roundabouts 

• Higher levels of skidding resistance is required where 
these features, or combinations thereof are present. 

• SCRIM is only undertaken on A,B and some C Roads 
due to size of the recording machine 

 

P
age 26



Intervention Criteria 

• Other factors that need to be maintained on 
the network include drainage/ditches to 
prevent build up of water on Carriageway 
which could lead to aquaplaning 

• Similarly the road profile needs to address 
dips to avoid similar standing water issues 

•  Monitoring of utility works and other third 
parties 

• Maintenance of structures. 

P
age 27



Public Expectations 

• 2013 Public Survey – Highways Service Area high 
priority equal 2nd to Social care, behind education 

• 45% of survey dissatisfied with Highway condition 

• Over 60% of complaints about Highway Services 
are in relation to defects 

• Complaints are rising from Businesses about the 
state of the network and the affect it has on 
investment  

P
age 28



Costs of repair 

• Pothole filling approximately £100/m2 (likely to 
require further repairs within 2 years) 

• Resurfacing  £20/m2 (15 years + no maintenance) 

• An example is at the A473 Waterton R/A, Based 
on broad assessment spending £100k now avoids 
costs of additional 25% - £125k over 25 year 
period. Further at year 25 the only option would 
be full reconstruction at an additional £185k 

P
age 29



Cost continued 

• Typical claims can vary from £200 for tyre repairs, 
up to £30,000 for Personal injury repairs 

• The above info is more aligned to simple pothole 
issues. However the skidding resistance is also a 
critical aspect of Carriageway Maintenance. 
Incidents as a consequence of failure in this 
regard could lead to life changing injuries and/or 
death. Corporate Manslaughter would certainly 
be a consideration. 

 

P
age 30



Road Condition analysis 
The Graphs produced in the business case identify the condition of the overall 
network based on differing spend scenarios. These graphs are based on asset 
evaluation tools used throughout the UK to predict the change in condition of 
the network.  

 

P
age 31



Road Condition 

£2,000,000 annual investment 

P
age 32



P
age 33



Investment 

• The LGBI process funded by Welsh 
Government saw an investment of over £2m 
per annum for 3 years. 

• This produced a reduction in claims by over 
50% by end of return period. 

• Road condition indicator was maintained 
below all Wales average as identified in the 
original business case 

P
age 34



Conclusions 

• Constant patching and pothole filling of the network is not sustainable.  
• These repairs will require further attention within a number of years. 
• The cost of third party claims will rise, and a lack of resources is not a 

defence.  
• A failing network will detract from investors to the area.  
• Public perception is already high that BCBC do not spend enough on 

repairing roads. This will get worse 
• Prevention/early intervention avoids increased costs in the future, and 

ultimately a point will be reached where the patching cannot go on. All 
national documents suggest increases in preventative maintenance will 
insure the network is protected. 

• Difficult decisions on the closing of roads will also have to be made. 
• BCBC currently under invests compared to neighbouring Authorities 
 

 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Table of Highways savings 

    11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 

Savings   559 491 290 442 863 522 316 422 140 

Saving as % of Highways Budget   7.08% 6.58% 3.86% 5.63% 12.03% 7.60% 4.23% 6.51% 2.21% 

Saving as % of Communities Budget   2.26% 2.05% 1.24% 1.93% 4.01% 2.14% 1.32% 1.84% 0.69% 

Saving as % of Communities savings (in year)   34.63% 48.09% 24.35% 25.58% 37.51% 39.07% 39.21% 31.49% 5.37% 

           

           
Highways Budget 

 
7896.617 

7464.15
2 

7522.39
1 7856.01 7174.15 6869.61 7463.47 6481.45 6341.45 

Communities Budget 
 

24714 23997 23378 
22869.1
8 

21546.8
1 24424 23858 

22913.8
1 

20305.8
1 

Communities Savings 
 

1614 1021 1191 1728 2301 1336 806 1340 2608 

           

           Summary  
              11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 

Savings   559 491 290 442 863 522 316 422 140 

Saving as % of Highways Budget   7.08% 6.58% 3.86% 5.63% 12.03% 7.60% 4.23% 6.51% 2.21% 

Saving as % of Communities Budget   2.26% 2.05% 1.24% 1.93% 4.01% 2.14% 1.32% 1.84% 0.69% 

Saving as % of Communities savings (in year)   34.63% 48.09% 24.35% 25.58% 37.51% 39.07% 39.21% 31.49% 5.37% 

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Q.   A schedule of resurfacing highways in the Borough 

A. A schedule of the 18/19 surfacing programme was provided in July 2018  

Q. What criteria is used to determine the frequency in which certain highways are 
inspected 

Currently it is anticipated that there is likely to be some additional 
inspections on the higher category highways (A Roads/B Roads/C roads) 
which may require higher frequency of inspection than Bridgend currently 
undertakes. The resource implications of this are yet to be assessed.

Q.  Copy of the report that went to the Audit Committee on Highways

Powerpoint attached

Q. Terms of Reference for the vehicle enforcement camera that patrols the schools 

A.  In accordance with the Civil Parking Enforcement powers granted to us in April 
2013 we have recently obtained Welsh Government certification for use of our 
Mobile Enforcement Vehicle as an ‘approved device’ (Certification document 
attached). We will now be able to issue postal Penalty Charge Notices using the 
mobile enforcement vehicle in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Civil 
Enforcement of Road traffic Contraventions (General Provisions) (Wales) 
Regulations 2013. 

Welsh legislation differs from English in that what we can enforce is not restricted. 
English legislation states that only bus lanes, bus stop clearway or bus stand 

“ Well-maintained Highways -Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance 
Management ” is the code of practice issued by the UK Roads Board that 
provides advice on how all Highway Authorities throughout the UK should 
undertake maintenance on the network. Within this document the frequency 
of inspections is set for the differing categories of highway. This document 
and the inspection frequency was adopted and trialled by the Council in 
2005, and approved in cabinet report 12th December 2006.

This code has recently been reviewed/updated by the UK Roads Board and 
has been re-issued. “Well Manged Highway Infrastructure – A code of 
Practice” is the updated code  and is to be implemented by October 2018. 
The main changes in the code for inspections is for them to be targeted as 
a risk based approach. As part of this update Bridgend County Borough 
Council, along with all 21 Highway Authorities in Wales have been working 
through the CSS(W) Engineering Group to create a standardised approach 
(which will include frequencies/intervention criteria/categorisation). Once 
process has been completed a report will be presented to cabinet to outline 
any changes and agree the use of the all wales approach. 

Page 39



clearway, school keep clear zig zags and red route contraventions can be served 
by post. Welsh legislation does not specify this. However, notwithstanding this, 
practicalities mean that only certain restrictions can be enforced using a vehicle – 
those that can be issued instantly and also do not require a timed observation 
period or where exemptions may apply (such as blue badges or resident permits). 
We will therefore be able to enforce the following:

 School keep clears
 Pedestrian crossing zig zags
 Bus stops
 Taxi ranks
 Loading bans

As stated in the Welsh government  ‘Traffic Management Act 2004 Statutory 
Guidance to Local Authorities on the Civil Enforcement of Road Traffic 
Contraventions: Parking’ ‘The primary objective of any camera enforcement 
system is to ensure the safe and efficient operation of the road network by 
deterring motorists from breaking road traffic regulations and detecting those that 
do’. (Section 56) ‘Welsh Ministers recommend that approved devices are only 
used where CEO enforcement is not practical…’ (Section 54). 

Q. Criteria for sites to be considered essential for the need of a school crossing 
patrol 

School Crossing Patrol  Site Assessment Criteria

The following site assessment criteria is a precise of the process outlined in 
the Road Safety GB School Crossing Patrol Service Guidelines (2012). The 
criteria is based on what is known as the PV² formula. 

The PV² formula is a well established calculation used to assess the 
justification for a pedestrian crossing as well as identifying a potential 
location to install a crossing. It is the calculation of the total number of 
pedestrians (P) multiplied total number of passenger car units (V²) from the 
busiest consecutive 30 minute period.

The count is undertaken at the busiest periods for am and pm for a period 
of 30 minutes in 5 minute consecutive intervals.

The count records the number of pedestrians crossing the road at existing 
sites or within 50 metres of the site for new or unstaffed sites. 

The total number of pedestrians (P) is multiplied by the total number of 
vehicles (V) to give the PV² value.

In accordance with the guidance, PV² has to reach 4 * 106 for a SCP to be 
justified as shown in the chart below.

Page 40



If the figure is less than 4 * 106 then additional factors shall be considered 
and scored as follows.

These additional factors are as follows;
 Junctions- proximity to junctions from crossing point
 Accidents - Child pedestrian injury within 50 meters of site/proposed 

site on weekday based on the yearly average over three years – one 
factor per child pedestrian injury .

 Speed of Traffic – estimated 85 percentile of traffic at time of the 
count.

 Visibility – along the road from crossing point
 Parking – cars habitually parked
 Age Factor - average age of pedestrians crossing within 50m

The number of factors are added together and the PV² is multiplied by the 
appropriate figure in the table below.

These additional factors are taken into account in the PV² formula along with 
any “risk assessment” reports that have been carried out on school sites. 
However, the guidance recommends that sites with less than 15 
unaccompanied children crossing the road in the busiest 30 minute period 
should not be considered for establishing a SCP.

Page 41



Action Chart – Checking SCP Site Viability (using Graph)

Position of Point Action to be taken
Area ‘P’ Crossing facilities justified

(It is recommended a light controlled
crossing be considered)

Area ‘A’ SCP site justified
(Recommended establishment of SCP
site)

Area ‘B’ SCP site not justified at initial assessment
(Apply Part 4 of the procedure to verify the
position)

Area ‘C’ SCP site definitely not justified at initial
assessment
(Apply Part 4 of the procedure if
exceptional circumstances exist)

Page 42



Q. Show the Highways budget savings as a % of that of the whole Directorate

Excel Spreadsheet attached

 Q. Provide APSE data from the report electronically if possible

APSE date Attached 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Date Subject 
Committee 

Item Specific Information to request Rationale for 
prioritisation

Proposed date Suggested Invitees Prioritised by 
Committees

16-Oct-2018 SOSC1 Post 16 Education
Following a meeting with Cabinet and Scrutiny Chairs, Members have requested to receive the report on Post -16 
Education, in advance of the report being received by Cabinet on 23 October 2018

16-Oct-2018 Lindsay Harvey, Interim Corporate Director - 
Education and Family Support;
Cllr Charles Smith, Cabinet Member for Education 
and Regeneration;
Nicola Echanis, Head of Education and Early Help.
Michelle Hatcher, Group Manager Inclusion and 
School Improvement
Third Sector Representatives

18-Oct-2018 SOSC2 

ALN Reform 

When the Act has been further progressed, report to include consideration of the following points:
a) How the Authority and Schools are engaging with parents over the changes to the Act?
b) What the finalised process is for assessments and who is responsible for leading with them?
c) What involvement/responsibilities do Educational Psychologists have under the Act?
d) Has the Act led to an increase in tribunals and what impact has this had?  This is set against the context of the recent 
announcement by the Lifelong Learning Minister that instead of saving £4.8m over four years the Act could potentially cost 
£8.2m due to an expected increase in the number of cases of dispute resolution.
e) Given that the Act focuses on the involvement of young people and their parents, what support is available for those 
involved in court disputes?
f) Outcomes from the Supported Internship programme.
g) Support for those with ALN into employment.
h) Staffing - Protection and support for staff, ALNCO support, workloads and capacity.
i) Pupil-teacher ratios and class sizes and impact of Act on capacity of teachers to support pupils with ALN
j) How is the implementation of the Act being monitored; what quality assurance frameworks are there and what 
accountability for local authorities, consortiums and schools?

Needs revisiting to monitor 
implementation of the Bill 
and if needs are being met 
as well as impact on future 
budgets - 

Lindsay Harvey, Interim Corporate Director - 
Education and Family Support;
Cllr Charles Smith, Cabinet Member for Education 
and Regeneration;
Nicola Echanis, Head of Education and Early Help.
Michelle Hatcher, Group Manager Inclusion and 
School Improvement
Third Sector Representatives

22-Oct-18 SOSC3

Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

The following items were previously prioritised by the Subject OVS Committees and considered by Corporate at its  last meeting where the top three items were  scheduled i n for the next round of meetings:

P
age 45



Appendix B
TABLE B

For 
prioritisation

Item Rationale for 
prioritisation

Proposed date Suggested Invitees

Education Outcomes 

Requested from SOSC 1 meeting in February to receive a further report at a meeting in the near future, (to be agreed by 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny), incorporating the following:
• School Categorisation information;
• In relation to Post-16 data at 4.53 of the report, the Committee requested that they receive the baseline for each school 
to give a better indication of how each school has improved;
• Information on Bridgend’s ranking for Key Stage 4 based on the latest results;
• Information on what targets were set at each stage in order to determine whether the performance was expected and 
possibly a cohort issue or whether any actuals differed significantly from the targets set;
• Information that the Consortium has gathered through drilling down into each schools’ performance to determine what 
challenges schools face;
• Further detail of the performance of those with ALN attending the PRU or Heronsbridge School as Members felt this was 
not incorporated into the report to a great degree;
• Information on the work that the Consortium is doing to identify the variation for each secondary school at Key Stage 4, 
and what is being done about it;
• More information in relation to each schools performance – not necessarily more data but detail of the where, what and 
how in relation to good and poor performance for each school so that the Committee has an overall understanding of the 
current situation and priority schools in Bridgend;
• What extent are schools responding to the changes recently introduced such as the removal of Btec etc, to ensure they 
are still meeting the needs of the pupils;
• What work is being done to mitigate against future dips in performance resulting from any changes to curriculum or 
changes to performance measures;
• Evidence of how the Consortium has made a direct impact on schools and school performance, what outcomes can they 
be measured on in relation to Bridgend to assure Members of value for money;
• What is being done to mitigate against the impact of changes in teachers to ensure that this does not have a resulting 
impact on the performance of pupils;
• Performance in relation to vocational qualifications and non-core subjects – where are there causes for concern and 
where there is excellent work taking place etc.

Jan-2019 Lindsay Harvey, Interim Corporate Director - 
Education and Family Support;
Cllr Charles Smith, Cabinet Member for Education 
and Regeneration;
Nicola Echanis, Head of Education and Early Help;
Mandy Paish, CSC Senior Challenge Advisor;
Mike Glavin, Managing Director CSC
Representative from School Budget Forum
Sarah Merry, Chair of CSC JOSC (Deputy Leader 
Cardiff Council) 
Primary, Secondary and Special School 
Headteacher representative 
Simon Pirotte, Principal Bridgend College

Review of Fostering 
Project

Further project as part of the Remodelling Children's Social Services 

- Detail regarding the upskilling of three internal foster carers to provide intensive, therapeutic step down placements as 
part of Residential Remodelling project 
- Review of the foster carer marketing and recruitment strategy at a draft/early stage to allow members input into the 
process

COSC have proposed that 
this item be considered by 
a future SOSC 1 for 
continuity purposes

Corporate Director 
proposed October 
2018

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director, Social Services 
and Wellbeing;
Cllr Phil White, Cabinet Member – Social Services 
and Early Help;
Laura Kinsey, Head of Children’s Social Care;
Pete Tyson, Group Manager – Commissioning;
Lauren North, Commissioning and Contract 
Management Officer; 
Natalie Silcox, Group Manager Childrens Regulated 
Services.

Direct Payment 
Scheme

Details on the revised policy including how the legislation has affected it.
How Direct Payments are delivered.
What support has been provided to service users since the launch of the new scheme.
How was the scheme launched to service users.

Corporate Director has 
proposed this as a 
potential item

Corporate Director 
proposed 
November

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director, Social Services 
and Wellbeing;
Cllr Phil White, Cabinet Member – Social Services 
and Early Help;

CIW investigation 
into LAC

Information only

The Committee requested that the outcome of the CIW investigation into Looked After Children be provided to Scrutiny for 
information  when it becomes available.

Self assessment 
and action plan 
due at end of year.

Cllr Phil White 

Remodelling 
Children’s 

Residential Services 
Project

SOSC 1 requested that the item be followed up by Scrutiny in the future for monitoring purposes, incorporating evidence of 
outcomes.

Corporate Director 
proposed early 
2019

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director, Social Services 
and Wellbeing;
Cllr Phil White, Cabinet Member – Social Services 
and Early Help;

CAMHS

With reference to the responses received in relation to Child Adolescent Mental Health Services Members on 12 
December 2018, Members note that most of the replies feature an element of work in progress and have asked to retain 
the item on the FWP for future review.  To receive an update on current provision and further advise on current situation in 
relation to comments and conclusions made on 12 December 2018. 

Update on work being undertaken throughout Wales looking at causes of mental health: 'Working Together for Mental 
Health'.

To include an update on how we are getting on moving into Cwm Taf.

Corporate Director 
proposed early 
2019

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director, Social Services 
and Wellbeing;
Cllr Phil White, Cabinet Member – Social Services 
and Early Help;
Chair and CEX of ABMU and Cwm Taff Health 
Boards

P
age 46



Appendix B

Revised CAT 
Process 

What is the latest with the CAT process? How has it been streamlined since it last came to Scrutiny back in January 2018
How many CATs have now been processed and completed?
How has the position improved
What are the plans for CAT going forward
How many CAT applications have been received altogether? How many have been progressed? 
How many have withdrawn and for what reasons? 
List of CAT 1 priorities and what is the plan for these? 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - Communities;
Cllr Richard Young, Cabinet Member - Communities;
Guy Smith, Community Asset Transfer Officer.

Empty Properties

SOSC 3 requested that this item continue on FWP - reasons and purpose to be confirmed Darren Mepham, Chief Executive ;
Martin Morgans, Head of Performance and 
Partnership Services 
Possible input from Mark Shephard, Corporate 
Director - Communities for the Commercial side
Cllr Dhanisha Patel, Cabinet Member Future 
Generations and Wellbeing

Communication and 
Engagement 

Is corporate communications meeting the needs of the various departments within the organisation to effectively 
communicate with residents
Current data of engagement 
Are current KPIs an effective measurement in a fast changing digital world
How do we engage with corporate communications with the digitally excluded 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive 
Corporate Communications Representative
Cllr Dhanisha Patel, Cabinet Member Future 
generations and Wellbeing 

Supporting People 
Programme Grant 

Full breakdown of the various services currently supported through this grant within BCBC (inc. the various financial detail) 
along with how this may have changed over recent years. The number of individuals supported through the grant and in 
what way. How are decisions made about where to spend the grant and how much in specific areas 
How effective is the grant support that is provided across a variety of sectors within BCBC, and to ensure that the grant is 
being targeted at the services most in need.

Improved outcomes in line 
with the agreed objectives 
of the grant.
Improved support for 
those in need of 
emergency housing and 
support

Susan Cooper Corporate Director Soscial Services 
and Wellbeing 
Cllr Phil White Cabinet Member Social Services and 
Wellbeing 
Wellbeing directorate
Housing Darren Mepham, Martin Morgans? Lynne 
Berry? 
Cllr Dhanisha Patel, Cabinet Member Future 
Generations and Wellbeing

To provide assurances on rationalisation of Learner Transport as far as possible in order to make budget savings:
Update on pilot that school transport team proposing to run in Spring and Summer terms 2017-2018 - to support the 
enforcement of bus passes on home to school transport contracts.  As part of this pilot, the Authority is also investigating 
opportunities to track the use of our school bus services by individual pupils.  
Update on Recommendation from BREP:
The Panel recommend the need for the Authority to adopt a Corporate approach in relation to Home to School Transport 
maximising the LA’s minibuses such as those used for day centres.  It is proposed that this be supported by slightly 
amending the opening and closing times of day centres so that the buses can be available for school transport.  Other 
aspects that could be considered include the exploration of whether school staff could transport children and young people 
instead of hiring independent drivers.
To test and scrutinise the current licensing and school transport regime to gain assurances that it provides adequate 
protection against the potential of putting children and vulnerable children at risk from those who are in a position of trust.
Changes to the DBS status of their employees to be scrutinised to ensure that children are not being put at undue risk.
To provide robust scrutiny and recommendations on how the current regime can be improved.
To provide assurances to the public and maintain public confidence in the system of school transport
Report to include
Update on the current arrangements of how licensing and school transport operates within the County Borough since the 
change in 2015 to the Police National Policy for disclosing non-conviction information to the local authority. Information to 
include a report from South Wales Police on its approach to disclosing information it holds about licencees following 
arrests, charges and convictions. 
What is the current relationship between the local authority's licensing and school transport departments in relation to the 
disclosure of informationfrom South Wales police?
Is there sufficient oversight on behalf of the local authority and a risk of contractors withholding information which may 
prejudice the continuation of their contract? 
Further proposed that Communities be invited to add to report and attend meeting to update Committee on safe routes 
assessment to determine what work has been undretaken since funding was allocated to this over a year ago.

Home to School 
Transport 

Lindsay Harvey, Interim Corporate Director - 
Education and Family Support;
Cllr Charles Smith, Cabinet Member for Education 
and Regeneration;
Cllr Richard Young, Cabinet Member Communities 
Nicola Echanis, Head of Education and Early Help.
Mark Shepherd, Corporate Director Communities;

Corporate Director 
proposed March 
2019 as the 
external review 
would not be 
completed until 
January 2019

To provide assurances on 
rationalisation of Learner 
Transport as far as 
possible in order to make 
budget savings.
To test and scrutinise the 
current licensing and 
school transport regime to 
gain assurances that it 
provides adequate 
protection against the 
potential of putting children 
and vulnerable children at 
risk from those who are in 
a position of trust.
Changes to the DBS 
status of their employees 
ought to be scrutinised by 
an Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee at the earliest 
opportunity to ensure that 
children are not being put 
at undue risk.
To provide robust scrutiny 
and recommendations on 
how the current regime 
can be improved.
To provide assurances to 
the public and maintain 
public confidence in the 
system of school transport

P
age 47



Appendix B
Member and School 
Engagement Panel - 
Annual Report

Annual Update to  - SOSC 1 on the work of the Member and School Engagenment Panel 

Item Specific Information to request

Social Services 
Commissioning 
Strategy

To include information on what work has taken place following the Social Services and Wellbeing Act population 
assessment.  
To also cover the following:
•        Regional Annual Plan
•       Bridgend Social Services Commissioning Strategy

Cwm Taf Regional 
Working

Update on situation and way forward with Regional Working with Cwm Taf?
How will we undertake Regional working?

Residential 
Remodelling - Extra 
Care Housing

Site visit to current Extra Care Housing and then to new site once work has begun

Children's Social 
Services

Briefing for SOSC 1 on Child Practice Reviews - details of latest CPRs over last 12-18 months - what recommendations 
have come out of them, how have they been responded to, how have they helped inform future work to help safeguard 
children.

The following items for briefing sessions or pre-Council  briefing P
age 48



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3

17 SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

WASTE SERVICES

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee in relation to the delivery 
and performance of the Council’s Waste Services Contract.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate 
Priorities 

2.1 Priority 3: Smarter use of resources.  This means the Council will ensure that 
all its resources (financial, physical, human and technological) are used as 
effectively and efficiently as possible and support the development of 
resources throughout the community that can help deliver the Council’s 
priorities.

3. Background 

3.1 On 22 November 2017 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 received 
a report on the new waste contract and raised questions relating to the 
performance and operation of the Council’s waste services contract.  

4. Current Situation / Proposal

4.1 Since the introduction of the new waste and recycling collection service on 5 
June 2017 the performance of the Council’s waste partner Kier and the 
delivery of waste collection services has gradually but significantly improved.  
While some challenges to the service occur from time to time in isolated 
locations, Officers and the Contractor’s staff continue to work closely to 
overcome these as required.

4.2 Details which evidence the improvement in performance are included in the 
responses to the specific questions raised by Scrutiny as set out below.  While 
the performance overall is now considered to be consistent with industry 
standards, some parts of the service including collection arrangements in 
some housing estates which rely on communal collection points such as 
Wildmill are yet to be fully resolved despite the efforts of Officers of the 
Council and the Contractor.  Further details on the measures taken to date are 
set out in the response to Scrutiny’s questions below:

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



1. Recycling performance statistics for other Local Authorities for 
comparison and benchmarking against Bridgend.

Information relating to the recycling performance of Welsh Local 
Authorities is attached as Appendix A.  The figures have been extracted 
from published data collected by Natural Resources Wales (NRW) from 
waste data flow information supplied by individual Welsh Local 
Authorities.  The information contained in the statistics has been subject 
to extensive audit and can be considered to be robust and accurate.  
From the details supplied for the 2016/2017 financial year, during the 
last year of the previous waste contract, Bridgend was ranked 21st out of 
the 22 Welsh Councils with a recycling rate of 57.9% .

Following the introduction of the new waste and recycling collection 
services in June 2017 the preliminary figures for the 2017/2018 financial 
year place Bridgend 2nd in Wales with 68.61% recycling.  However, it 
should be noted that the new waste and recycling collection system did 
not commence until 5 June 2017.  As such, we would anticipate that 
Bridgend will see further improvements in the figures for the current 
2018/2019 financial year.  Early indications are that the figure for this 
year will exceed 70%.

The current municipal waste recycling targets as set by the Welsh 
Government are: 64 per cent recycling by 2019-20 and 70 per cent of 
waste recycled by 2024-25.  It should be noted that the Welsh 
Government is currently reviewing these targets and it is likely that the 
target will be raised further.

2. The future recycling of black plastic (i.e. food cartons, etc.).

The recycling markets for recovered plastics is in a state of contraction.  
In 2017 66% of the packaging recovery notes issued for plastic were 
from accredited exporters, 25% of this for material exported to China.  
Since China’s ban on various waste imports, other countries have 
followed suit.

 In January 2018, Vietnam stopped issuing waste import licences.
 Malaysia have also revoked 114 import licences from factories that 

are now un-licenced and unable to import waste plastic. 
 In July 2018, Thailand banned all imports of plastic and electronic 

waste. 
 In August 2018 and subject to a 60 day notification period, Taiwan 

announced that it was banning the import of mixed household waste 
plastic.  

Therefore, significant demand for plastics has been taken out of the 
global market.

Page 50



Plastic recyclers now more than ever have the pick of material available 
in the market and will prioritise quality.  

With regards to household plastic bottles and packaging, the priorities 
are as follows:

- Grade A – mixed plastic bottles
- Grade B – mixed plastic bottles and packaging (excluding film and 

black plastic)
- Grade C – mixed plastic bottles and packaging (with some film and 

black plastic)

Although historically, a £30-£50 per tonne drop in price could have been 
forecasted from Grade B and C, we are in unchartered territory and in a 
situation where past performance may no longer be a guide or indicator 
of the future. 

Adding film and food trays to Bridgend’s current plastic recycling stream 
poses two risks

 The risk of devaluing the current product by £50 per tonne or more
 The risk of being left with an unsaleable product is high in the current 

market

The cost of accepting film and black plastic trays within Bridgend’s 
plastic recycling system is estimated as a loss of revenue of £110,000 
per annum based upon 2,200 tonnes at £50 per tonne. 

It is recommended that this option is kept under review but at this stage, 
whilst the market is contracting and there is real challenge with demand, 
any change poses significant risk.

3. The performance of the call centre including the average time taken to 
answer a call.  Members also queried if the call centre was still based in 
Torquay.

The Council’s main point of contact for service requests and complaints 
remains the responsibility of Kier under the Council’s contract with them.  
Kier have elected to deliver the services detailed in the contract for 
handling service requests and complaints through their customer contact 
centre ‘Tor2’ based in Torquay.

Extracts of the customer contact centres performance for July 2018 are 
detailed for consideration by Scrutiny in Appendix B.

For the week commencing Monday 23rd July 2018, taken as a sample 
week for the purposes of this report, the worst performance at the 
contact centre for calls not answered within 2 minutes was Wednesday 

Page 51



the 25th July when a total of 204 calls were taken; of these 13 took more 
than 2 minutes to be answered, which is just over 6% of calls.  The 
contact centres best performing day for that week was Tuesday 24th July 
when 203 calls were taken with 1 call not answered within 2 minutes, 
which is just under 0.5% of calls.

The performance of the contact centre can be affected by several factors 
including numbers of calls, call concentration, i.e. the spread and 
numbers of calls being received at the same time, operator absence etc.  
The performance of the contact centre has measurably improved since 
mobilisation when early teething troubles combined with large volumes 
of calls led to the acknowledged difficulties at the time, and generally 
now performs to specific contractual performance levels.

4. Are there any plans for Kier to assist with recycling from Bridgend 
County Borough Council (BCBC) offices and schools?

Refuse and recycling from schools and other council buildings is subject 
to separate commercial arrangements outside of the Kier contract. 
There is no obligation on the Contractor under the terms of the Council’s 
Contract with them to offer services to schools and other Council owned 
premises.  While the contract requires the Contractor to offer commercial  
waste services, the budget for the management of schools is delegated 
to individual schools and it is a matter for them to establish the most cost 
effective mechanism for the disposal or recycling of waste.  The majority 
of schools have elected to have their waste collected by contractors 
other than Kier.

5. The impact of the recently recruited senior managers associated with the 
Bridgend contract and front line operative staff.  Was recruitment 
successful? Have all staff now been given full induction and training?

The senior posts of Business Manager and Operations Manager have 
been successfully filled. Since the appointment of the team and the re-
structure at Bridgend, the performance has significantly improved. The 
team have implemented a number of initiatives to aid the performance 
and the service delivery as follows:

1. Strategy Improvement Planning Systems
a. To problem solve key issues that affected the contract

i. Missed collections
ii. Delivery issues

2. Team structure to drive service and improvement
a. Daily meetings
b. One to one meetings with staff 
c. Engagement, challenge and support culture being developed

3. Efficiency Continuous Improvements with Team wide interaction

Page 52



a. Tipping time reduction to increase productivity and service 
levels

b. New vehicles and increased capacity aiding with improved 
tipping and collections 

6. Information on the updates to the Community Recycling Centres (CRCs) 
including the instalment of the polystyrene baler and webcam so 
residents are able to monitor the traffic flow at the site.

The baling idea for polystyrene has been re-reviewed and seen as being 
not cost effective against other options. Currently Kier have entered talks 
with a third party that will recycle polystyrene back into re-usable 
packaging - this method would be more cost effective to the client and 
the contractor and achieve the same outcome. Further updates will be 
provided as discussions continue.

The webcams have been installed and require setting up by the BCBC 
IT team and the Kier service provider so that the cameras can be 
viewed. This should be in place within the next few weeks.

7. Change of days for the communal collections - Has this happened? Has 
the service shown improvements since the change?

The contractor in conjunction with officers initially revised communal 
collection days to rationalise the operations. This did cause some 
confusion and issues with Housing Associations, the collections however 
now have settled into new scheduled collection days, which residents 
and Housing Associations are aware of. 

Collection days have been agreed to avoid the growing impact of waste 
build up at the communal areas by deploying recycling collections on a 
Monday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday every week and refuse once 
a fortnight on a Thursday. Kier has also deployed an additional day on 
Monday for key areas such as Wildmill to minimise overspill. This has 
allowed the waste to not build to excessive levels.

Kier has set up better locations for residents to dispose of their waste in 
key areas such as Wildmill. Kier has also been involved in discussions 
with members and officers to help residents have better facilities for food 
waste and sack deliveries, with V2C being issued with food caddies and 
sacks to give as part of a welcome pack to new residents. 

8. Impact of the new collection vehicles.  Have they made collection rounds 
more efficient? 

Yes the collection rounds are more efficient. The impact of the new 
collection vehicles has been significant for the following reasons:

1. Roadside collections

Page 53



a. The vehicles have been designed specifically to compliment 
the recycling collection equipment deployed within Bridgend

b. The vehicle aids safer and more efficient collection of kerbside 
recycling

c. There is no need to pre-sort at the Kerbside
d. Vehicles are more efficient due to being able to compact both 

card and plastic resulting in greater carrying capacity for these 
streams

2. Tipping of material
a. The ability to safely and quickly eject card in the transfer 

station
b. The ability to safely and quickly eject plastic in the transfer 

station
c. The ability to store more of a payload for glass, food, textile 

and WEEE

9. Outcome of the review of BCBC in house Street Scene enforcement 
activity.

Work on tender documentation to seek a litter enforcement partner is 
currently ongoing and is expected, subject to the usual approval 
process, to be completed in readiness for the commencement of 
enforcement activities during the spring of 2019.

Commissioning external support is considered in the current financial 
climate to be the most appropriate way forward.  The commission at this 
stage will be on the basis of a one year contract with the ability, by 
mutual agreement, to extend the contract by up to a further 12 months.  
This will allow the Council to review the success of the arrangement and 
to form a view on how it should proceed in the future.

The Council’s ability to attract and appoint an external enforcement 
partner through a procurement exercise will largely depend on the 
markets appetite and the bidders view on risk position with regard to the 
Council tender, as we do not expect to pay for the contract, bidders will 
have to be assured that the service specified can be self-funding.  
Scrutiny may have read a recent BBC report which detailed the 
experiences of several other Welsh Councils who have commissioned 
the services of Kingdom Services Group Limited.  This report purported 
that the company were withdrawing from providing enforcement services 
in Wales.  While the commercial position of Kingdom is clearly a matter 
for the company, it nevertheless demonstrates the potential difficulties 
which lie ahead and which need to be taken into consideration when 
seeking to engage an external company to act as the Council’s 
enforcement partner.

The current view of officers is that sufficient companies are providing 
enforcement services to ensure that a robust and competitive process of 

Page 54



market testing can take place and that the Council will be able to secure 
an enforcement partner on the terms of its tender.

A recent report in Wales On Line highlighted the problems that Merthyr 
Tydfil Council have experienced following the appointment of additional 
enforcement officers to strengthen in house enforcement of street litter 
and dog fouling.   The report drew attention to the fact that in the 12 
months following the introduction of the additional enforcement officers, 
no fixed penalty fines were issued.  While the reasons behind this were 
not presented in detail the report did site problems from the outset with 
the measure.  The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning and Countryside was quoted as saying that the Council had 
four options on how to proceed which included continuing services in-
house, stopping all enforcement, using an external agency or using 
street wardens. The report highlights the difficulties that are being 
experienced by many local Authorities in Wales in seeking to tackle the 
issue of street litter and dog fouling enforcement.

Each of the options present their own unique set of challenges, which 
need to be overcome to deter those who would otherwise routinely 
discard their litter or leave their dog fouling on the street, to the detriment 
of the Borough, while avoiding alienating the wider community by being 
perceived as overly autocratic or profiteering.

Cabinet approved at their meeting on the 17 July 2018 a public 
consultation exercise on the making of a Public Spaces Protection Order 
which would introduce dog contracts in the County Borough and would 
give the Council the power to issue fixed penalty notices for dog fouling.  
The results of this public consultation when concluded will be set out in a 
future report to cabinet for consideration.

10. Longer term trend of fly tipping.  What are the figures of fly tipping in the 
Borough? Have they improved? Domestic or business.

The latest figures relating to Fly Tipping on Relevant Land are presented 
for consideration by Scrutiny in Appendix C.  Scrutiny will note that 
since the introduction of the new waste services collection system in 
June 2017 figures relating to fly tipping have increased.  It should be 
noted that some of this increase will be directly attributable to operations 
by the Council’s Cleaner Streets team in addressing blue bag refuse 
sacks, presented incorrectly by households and picked up by cleaner 
streets. In picking up these sacks and disposing of them with the street 
cleansing waste it will somewhat distort the street cleansing tonnage 
figures as this now contains some typically household waste,  It is not 
possible to quantify this effect with any accuracy.

The figures presented for complaints received for fly tipping on all land 
need to be treated with some caution as they do not directly correlate 
with fly tipping incidents.  This is due to multiple complaints being logged 
for some instances of fly tipping.  These figures also relate to fly tipping 

Page 55



reported on both relevant land and land in private ownership, for which 
the Council is ordinarily not responsible for clearing. 

In both cases Scrutiny will note the figures for April this year which show 
an increase in the numbers of fly tipping incidents. We believe this is 
directly related to reports of fly tipping following stronger enforcement of 
the Council’s residual waste two bag rule, where households presented 
more than their two bag limit.  A number of such incidents were reported 
and logged as fly tipping.  Where the offender is identified action which 
may be taken is for the individual to remove the material and dispose of 
it appropriately or face financial penalty. It can also be seen that these 
figures are now returning to previous levels.

Regrettably incidents of fly tipping will continue to be recorded for so 
long as irresponsible individuals seek to avoid disposal charges for 
commercial waste or subvert the Council’s policy on household waste 
and not recycle as is required.

11. A breakdown in the number of Member referrals received before the new 
contract in a typical month and what they were related to and a 
breakdown of the number of referrals received since April 2018.

Information relating to Member Referrals is not held within the system by 
subject.  It is therefore not possible to easily extract this detail and to do 
so would require several hours of staff time to separately identify and 
record each referral with regard to waste services from all of the referrals 
made by Members and to arrive at a total and the area of waste service 
they related to.

Information on the numbers of public requests for service is presented 
for Scrutiny in Appendix B.

12. A review of the Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) bags be considered 
to include the monetary impact against environmental impact.

The exact contractual financial value of the AHP service is commercially 
sensitive and hence not included in the report.  However, expressed as a 
percentage, the AHP service cost represents 4.38% of the overall waste 
contract and disposal costs. 

The AHP service contributes an approximate 2% of the total recycling 
tonnage.

13. Clarification on the entry of vehicles to the CRC’s and how a commercial 
vehicle is determined? Size.

Details of the vehicle types and sizes permitted to enter the Council’s 
Community Recycling Centres (CRC) are presented in Appendix D.  It 
should be noted that these controls have been established as a 
mechanism to prevent businesses from depositing waste in the Council’s 

Page 56



CRC to avoid incurring disposal charges which can run upwards of £90 
per tonne of material.  There would be a significant cost to the Council if 
it were to remove these controls along with a corresponding impact on 
its statutory recycling target.

Where householders operate larger vehicles and trailers they are able to 
apply for permission to enter the CRC sites.  In applying for such 
permission the householder is asked for the details of the materials that 
they will be disposing of, the type and registration of the vehicles they 
will be using. They are then given a date on which they can enter the 
sites.

14. What sanctions have been given to Kier for non-compliance? Including 
non-delivery of receptacles and missed collections.  How many “points” 
have they been penalised since the start of the contract and what does 
this equate to in monetary terms.

In year 1 of the contract 424,862 points were calculated under the 
mechanisms within the contract. The financial settlement taking into 
account mitigation is commercially sensitive and hence cannot be 
included within this report.

In the current year typical points are circa 9,100 per month and 
decreasing. The financial deductions associated with these points are 
now agreed and subtracted each month. 

It should be noted 1 point does not equal 1 performance failure due to 
the points value and multiplier. For example 1 late container or sack 
delivery = 5 points with a multiplier for each additional day over the 
planned 10 day window. One missed collection is 2 points, whereas one 
missed AHP collection is 25 points again with multipliers for each 
additional day uncollected.

15. How are the collections in communal areas being managed? Are there 
enough receptacles available for residents to dispose of their waste and 
recycling?

Education Officers have been instrumental in communicating with 
Housing Associations and private landlords to establish the needs within 
those communities. A mixture of educating residents and reviewing the 
location and number of recycling containers, has improved the levels of 
contamination and resolved issues with overflowing bins. Whilst some 
locations are working effectively, there is still work to be done in isolated 
areas. 

There are also issues with historic communal collection points which are 
being challenged and, where appropriate, these collections points are 
reverting to kerbside collections.

Page 57



Kier has deployed in key areas, such as Wildmill, 12 extra recycling bin 
sets further to discussions with officers, members and V2C to provide 
increased capacity at better locations for the residents to dispose of their 
waste, and have better facilities for food waste and sack deliveries, 
including starter packs for new residents within this area.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 This report has no effect on Policy Framework and Procedural Rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no equalities implications as a result of this report

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation 
of this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of 
this report. 

8. Financial Implications 

8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report.

9. Recommendations

9.1 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 are asked to note and provide 
comment on the contents of this report.

MARK SHEPHARD
Corporate Director Communities
August 2018

Contact Officer: Andrew Hobbs
Group Manager Streetworks

Telephone: (01656) 643416

E-mail: andrew.hobbs@bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB

Background Documents: None

Page 58

mailto:andrew.hobbs@bridgend.gov.uk


Appendix A
Welsh Local Authority Recycling Performance

Audited Recycling rates 2016/17 % Provisional recycling rates 2017/18 %

Local Authority Local Authority
Ceredigion County Council 70.11 Isle of Anglesey CC 72.19
Wrexham CBC 68.73 Bridgend CBC 68.61
Monmouthshire CC 68.72 Flintshire County Council 67.64
Flintshire County Council 68.20 Caerphilly CBC 66.69
Carmarthenshire County Council 66.23 Monmouthshire CC 65.77
Isle of Anglesey CC 65.79 Wrexham CBC 65.44
Caerphilly CBC 65.52 Denbighshire County Council 64.21
Vale of Glamorgan Council 65.33 Ceredigion County Council 63.70
Pembrokeshire County Council 65.29 Conwy CBC 63.65
Powys County Council 65.20 Carmarthenshire County Council 63.64
Merthyr Tydfil CBC 65.09 City  and County of Swansea 63.26
Denbighshire County Council 64.69 Vale of Glamorgan Council 63.21
Rhondda Cynon Taff CBC 64.41 Merthyr Tydfil CBC 62.74
City  and County of Swansea 63.70 Rhondda Cynon Taff CBC 61.31
Torfaen CBC 63.59 Torfaen CBC 60.58
Neath Port Talbot CBC 62.77 Neath Port Talbot CBC 60.54
Conwy CBC 62.58 Powys County Council 60.45
Newport City Council 61.39 Gwynedd Council 60.27
Gwynedd Council 61.08 Newport City Council 59.82
Cardiff County Council 58.12 Cardiff County Council 59.77
Bridgend CBC 57.90 Pembrokeshire County Council 57.00
Blaenau Gwent CBC 56.77 Blaenau Gwent CBC 56.00

P
age 59



Appendix B

Monthly Call Statistics for July 2018

DAY Calls Taken Abandoned Voicemails
Calls Not 

Connected in 
2 Mins

02nd 271 4 3 6
03rd 246 7 3 8
04th 183 9 4 13
05th 168 3 2 5
06th 157 26 17 42
09th 257 17 7 21
10th 221 3 1 2
11th 244 12 6 15
12th 180 5 3 4
13th 170 13 9 20
16th 231 13 7 20
17th 204 4 5 9
18th 228 14 7 19
19th 193 9 7 15
20th 184 5 1 2
23rd 242 7 0 5
24th 203 1 0 1
25th 204 13 12 13
26th 196 11 6 9
27th 184 5 1 1
30th 206 15 3 14
31st 202 7 4 11

Totals 4574 203 108 255

Page 60



Appendix B Con’t

Weekly Call Statistics for Week Commencing:  Monday 23rd July 2018

ECHO CALLS Emails

Categories 23 24 25 26 27 28 29  DAY
Calls 
Taken Abandoned

Voice 
mails

Calls Not 
Connected 
in 2 Mins DAY

Customer 
Emails 
Received

Asbestos 
Assessment

Dispensation 
Disability  
etc.

AHP Add 16 18 7 9 9 2 2  23 242 7 0 5 23 75 1 0

AHP Remove 1 2 2 1 0 0 0  24 203 1 0 1 24t 39 1 1

AHP Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  25 204 13 12 13 25 50 0 1

AHP Compliment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  26 196 11 6 9 26 64 1 0

AHP Missed Collection 7 14 5 8 13 0 0  27 184 5 1 1 27 56 2 0

AHP Re-Register 14 9 9 11 8 1 0           

AHP Sack Request 13 11 17 17 14 0 0           

Assured Collections Add 1 0 4 0 0 0 0           

Assured Collections Remove 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

Bulky Waste Collection 43 26 30 21 23 0 4           

Bulky Waste Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

Bulky waste Compliment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

Bulky Waste Missed Collection 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

Bulky Waste Other 6 6 14 5 7 0 0           

Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

P
age 61



ECHO CALLS Emails

Categories 23 24 25 26 27 28 29  DAY
Calls 
Taken Abandoned

Voice 
mails

Calls Not 
Connected 
in 2 Mins DAY

Customer 
Emails 
Received

Asbestos 
Assessment

Dispensation 
Disability  
etc.

DR Complaint 1 0 1 0 0 0 0           

DR Compliment 0 0 1 0 0 0 0           

DR Dispensation Add 1 2 2 5 0 0 0           

DR Dispensation Remove 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

DR Missed Collection 7 2 5 9 3 0 0           

DR Other 49 43 54 38 40 0 0           

DR Sack Request - Collect 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

DR Sack Request - Deliver 55 44 29 45 27 0 0           

Garden Waste Add 2 2 0 2 2 0 0           

Garden Waste Remove 1 1 0 0 0 0 0           

Garden Waste Complaint 1 0 1 0 2 0 0           

Garden Waste Compliment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           

Garden Waste Container Request 4 4 3 0 2 0 0           

Garden Waste Missed Collection 3 2 2 7 6 1 0           

Garden Waste Other 3 1 4 3 4 0 0           

KR Complaint 7 5 1 1 1 0 0           

KR Compliment 0 0 2 0 0 0 0           

P
age 62



ECHO CALLS Emails

Categories 23 24 25 26 27 28 29  DAY
Calls 
Taken Abandoned

Voice 
mails

Calls Not 
Connected 
in 2 Mins DAY

Customer 
Emails 
Received

Asbestos 
Assessment

Dispensation 
Disability  
etc.

KR Container Requests 104 70 70 72 53 1 1           

KR Missed Collection 7 5 8 9 10 0 0           

KR Other 32 33 32 28 15 0 0           

Echo Raised through Portal 26 31 24 17 23 5 7           

TOTAL 378 300 303 291 239 5 7  
Tota
l 1029 37 19 29

Tota
l 284 5 2

P
age 63



Appendix C

Fly Tipping - Number of Incidents Reported - Relevant Land

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC  JAN  FEB MAR 
0

20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
MONTH

N.B. Relevant Land refers to land which the Coucil 
has a duty to keep clear from litter and refuse.

Fly Tipping - Number of Complaints Received - All Land

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC  JAN  FEB MAR 
0

20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
MONTH

N.B. All Land refers to land under Coucil responsibility 
/ ownership plus privately owned land

Page 64



Appendix D

Visits to Community Recycling Centres (Tip Notes)

The authority in partnership with its waste contractor runs 3 Community Recycling Centres 

(CRCs) at various locations (Tythegston, Brynmenyn and Maesteg) throughout the borough.

 If a householder wishes to dispose of domestic waste at any CRC, they are required to 

register their visit (tip note) should they wish to take the waste in any vehicle other than a 

private car.

    To register for a ‘tip note’ the householder will contact the Authorities call centre, where 

the option to press 1 for waste directs the householder to the Contractors call centre and 

the request is logged on the ECHO system.

 When taking a call from a customer the following details are taken –

 Name, address and telephone contact details,

 The CRC the customer wishes to visit,

 The day the customer wishes to visit the CRC,

 The items the customer wishes to take to the CRC as this could result in 

an assessment of the material being required,

 The registration number, make and model of the vehicle to be used.

 The Authorities website informs the householder that they are required to give 48 hrs 

notice to the Authority of a visit to any CRC, however, if a customer contacts the call 

centre before 12 Noon it is sometimes possible to allow the householder to visit a CRC 

the next working day, this is dependent on the amount of material the householder 

wishes to take to the CRC and the possible need for an assessment of the material to be 

undertaken by the supervisors.

 The contractor’s officers at Tondu forwards a report for each separate CRC’s to the 

contractor for the forthcoming site visits (Tip Notes) at 12 Noon daily  The reports 

contains the following information:-

 Date of visit.

 Registration number, make and model of vehicle

 Item(s) to be deposited

 Additional Information (Photos / number of loads)

Page 65



 Reports forwarded on Fridays contain information on visits for Saturdays, Sundays and 

Mondays. In the event of bank holiday(s) the report prior to the holiday(s) will contain the 

information for the bank holiday(s).

 The reports are then distributed to the CRC’s, so that the operatives are aware of 

forthcoming visits.

The criteria for vehicles allowed to enter the CRC with domestic waste are as follows:-

 No vehicle carrying commercial waste will be allowed into any CRC,

 Private cars do not need a ‘Tip Note’

 larger vehicle up to a short wheeled based transit van type require a ‘Tip 

Note’ to take domestic waste to any CRC,

 NO tippers, flat beds or box vans allowed,

 Pick-ups vehicles require a ‘Tip Note’,

 Any vehicle with an open back will require a ‘Tip Note’,

 Trailers are allowed into a CRC subject to the following :-

 Trailers up to 5ft are allowed into the CRC’s without a ‘Tip Note’ but 

have to be towed by a private car,

 Trailers between 5ft and 6ft 6in require a ‘Tip Note’ (the measurements 

refer to the bed length of the trailer)

 Trailers over 6ft 6in are not allowed in any CRC

 ‘Tip  Notes ‘ are not automatically booked for certain items i.e. building materials(rubble, 

wood etc.) or large amounts of general materials. Requests to deposit this type of 

material at a CRC require an assessment of the materials to be undertaken by the 

Authorities inspectors.

 For asbestos and asbestos related material an assessment is always required as a 

charge is made to deposit this material at any CRC. (Asbestos procedure is dealt with 

below).

 A ‘Tip Note’ assessments involve the following:–

 The householder is questioned on initial contact as to the nature of the material to be 

taken by the householder to the CRC. If it is deemed by officers that an assessment is 

required (due to the nature or volume of the material) the householder is informed that 

an assessment is required and it is booked in on the ECHO system.

 Reports of assessment required (including Asbestos) are supplied to contractor’s 

supervisors on a daily basis, the reports covers assessments to be undertake on that 

particular day.

Page 66



 A Contract supervisor visits the customer’s address and if the materials are allowed to be 

taken to the CRC, photographs are taken of the materials and sent along with a daily 

report to the contractor.

 Assessments are booked in at least one working day in advance. 

 On completion of the assessment and if the material is allowed the customer has to re-

contact the contractor’s call centre and book a ‘Tip Note’ to access the CRC

 Small vans are allowed up to 3 loads, a transit van is allowed one load – some 

dispensation may be allowed with an assessment from a supervisor.

 A registration log is maintained with ANPR, to highlight repeated visits above the norm.

Asbestos Procedure

 On receipt of a call related to Asbestos the householder is informed that an assessment 

has to be undertaken of the material by a Contractor supervisor. The householder will be 

first asked if a builder has been employed for the removal of the Asbestos as no 

asbestos removed by builders is allowed to be deposited at any CRC

 The householder is advised that the asbestos skips are only located in Tythegston CRC.

 For asbestos an assessment is always made as this is a chargeable material (costs vary 

but is based on £10 per standard sheet size - 6ft x 2ft 6” or a 17 Kg bag).

 An appointment for an assessment is booked on the contractor’s ECHO system for the 

next working day

 A supervisor visits the householder and makes an assessment of the material and the 

price to be charged 

 The householder is advised that asbestos deposited at the CRC has to be double 

wrapped and bagged prior to being taken to the CRC.

 Photographs are taken of the asbestos

 If the customer is happy with the price they re-contact the call centre to make payment 

and a ‘Tip Note’ is then booked following normal procedures set out above.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	Appendix A - Feedback
	Appendix A1 - Grass and Hedge Cutting Schedule 2018
	Appendix A2 - Resurfacing prog 18.19 (v1)
	Appendix A3 - Maintenance of the Highway Network to Audit
	Appendix A4 - Table of highways savings
	Appendix A6 Highways response to conclusions
	Appendix B

	5 Gwasanaethau Gwastraff

